
Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, audio-
recorded, photographed or reported electronically by the use 
of social media by anyone attending.  This does not apply to 
any part of the meeting that is held in private session.  The 
Council will webcast the meeting.

Please ask for:
Marie Lowe

4 September 2018

Dear Councillor

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE to be held on Thursday 13 September 
2018 at 7.30 pm in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden 
City, Herts, AL8 6AE

Yours faithfully

Corporate Director
Public Protection, Planning and Governance

A G E N D A
PART 1

1.  SUBSTITUTIONS 

To note any substitution of Members made in accordance with Council Procedure 
Rules 19-22.

2.  APOLOGIES 

3.  MINUTES 

To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 16 August 2018 
(previously circulated).

4.  NOTIFICATION OF URGENT BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED UNDER ITEM 11 
AND ANY ITEMS WITHDRAWN FROM THE AGENDA 

Public Document Pack



5.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST BY MEMBERS 

To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-disclosable 
pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items on the Agenda.

6.  WOOD GREEN TIMBER COMPANY, COOPERS LANE, NORTHAW, POTTERS 
BAR, EN6 4NE- 6/2018/0719/FULL - RETENTION OF EXISTING RACKING 
STRUCTURE WITH A REDUCED HEIGHT OF 4M AND OMITTING THE ROOFS 
(Pages 5 - 20)

Report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance).

7.  11 OAKLEA, WELWYN, AL6 0PT - 6/2018/1556/FULL - RETROSPECTIVE 
APPLICATION FOR THE CHANGE OF USE OF AMENITY LAND TO 
RESIDENTIAL LAND INCLUDING THE ERECTION OF A 1.82M BOUNDARY 
FENCE (Pages 21 - 28)

Report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance).

8.  57 ATTIMORE ROAD, WELWYN GARDEN CITY AL8 6LG - 6/2018/1708/TPO - 
FELL 1X CONIFER TREE (T1) - CONSERVATION AREA (Pages 29 - 32)

Report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance).

9.  APPEAL DECISIONS (Pages 33 - 34)

Report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance).

10.  PLANNING UPDATE - FUTURE PLANNING APPLICATIONS (Pages 35 - 48)

Report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance).

11.  SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIRMAN, IS OF 
SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION 

12.  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

The Committee is asked to resolve:

That under Section 100(A)(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be now excluded from the meeting for Items 13 and 14 on the grounds 
that they involve the likely disclosure of confidential or exempt information as 
defined in Section 100(A)(3) and Paragraphs 2 (Information likely to reveal the 
identity of an individual), and 6 (Statutory notice or order)  of Part 1 of Schedule 
12A of the said Act (as amended).

In resolving to exclude the public in respect of the exempt information, it is 
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information.



PART II

13.  ENFORCEMENT CASES MONITORING REPORT (Pages 49 - 62)

Exempt report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and 
Governance).

14.  ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF AN EXEMPT NATURE AT THE DISCRETION OF 
THE CHAIRMAN 

Circulation: Councillors N.Pace (Chairman)
J.Boulton (Vice-Chairman)
S.Boulton
H.Bromley
J.Caliskan
A.Chesterman
S.Elam

P.Hebden
M.Larkins
T.Lyons
S.Markiewicz
P.Shah
S.Wrenn

Corporate Management Team
Press and Public (except Part II Items)

If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Marie Lowe, 
Governance Service on 01707 357443 or email – democracy@welhat.gov.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



Part I
Executive Member: Councillor S Boulton

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE – 13 SEPTEMBER 2018
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE) 
 
6/2018/0719/FULL

WOOD GREEN TIMBER COMPANY, COOPERS LANE, NORTHAW, POTTERS 
BAR, EN6 4NE

RETENTION OF EXISTING RACKING STRUCTURE WITH A REDUCED HEIGHT 
OF 4M AND OMITTING THE ROOFS 

APPLICANT: Mr J Silvester    

AGENT: DLA Town Planning  

                            (Northaw & Cuffley)

1 Site Description

1.1 The application site comprises an established timber merchant yard operated 
by ‘Wood Green Timber Company’.  The application site is located on the 
west side of Coopers Lane, close to Potters Bar.  The site is adjoined to the 
south by an access road leading onto Coopers Lane, beyond which is an 
open field.  Two residential properties also face onto the access road, almost 
opposite the application site.  To the immediate west of the application site is 
a recycling centre, with open land and the Old Owens Sports Ground beyond.  
To the immediate north is the access road and car park to the sports ground, 
and a parcel of open land.  To the east, the land is mostly open fields with 
occasional pockets of woodland.  The character of the area is described as 
being semi-rural.

2 The Proposal

2.1 Planning permission is sought for the retention of an existing racking structure 
with a reduced height of 4m and omitting the roofs.

2.2 In July 2016 a covered racking structure measuring 7.2m high by 10.5m deep 
by 60.6m wide was erected at the application site.  A retrospective planning 
application was submitted and refused (ref: 6/2017/0367/FULL).  Following 
this decision, an enforcement notice was served against the structure.  The 
requirements of the notice were to demolish and completely remove the 
racking structure, remove all materials and debris as a result of demolition and 
then restore the land to its previous condition.  An appeal was made against 
this enforcement notice.  This appeal was dismissed and the enforcement 
notice upheld with a period of compliance of 6 months (ref: 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



APP/C1950/C/17/3169719).  The racking structure subject to this enforcement 
notice remains to-date.

2.3 This application attempts to overcome the refused planning application and 
dismissed enforcement notice appeal by:

- Presenting additional information regarding the two fall-back positions: 
the continuation of the existing operation and the use of the site as a 
bulk store;

- Reduction in height of the racks to 4 metres (omitting roof);

- A restriction in height of timber stacked within 20m of the highway to no 
more than the height of the existing wooden boundary fence running 
parallel with Coopers Lane;

- A restriction in height of timber stacked elsewhere on the site to no 
more than 4 metres;

- Restricting the hours of opening to 7 a.m. to 5 p.m. Monday to Friday 
and 8 a.m. to 1 p.m. Saturday and closed on Sundays and Bank 
Holidays;

- Additional soft landscaping along the eastern and southern boundary of 
the site.

3 Reason for Committee Consideration

3.1 This application is presented to the Development Management Committee 
because Northaw & Cuffley Parish Council have objected.

4 Relevant Planning History

Planning 

4.1 Application number: 6/2017/0367/FULL
Proposal: Retention of racking structure, omitting the existing roofs 
Decision: Refused 
Decision date: 29 June 2017

Reasons for refusal:

‘The racking structure, by virtue of its location, scale and form, represents 
inappropriate development within the Green Belt and has a harmful effect on 
the openness of the Green Belt. No very special circumstances exist. As 
such, this development is contrary to Policy GBSP1 of the Welwyn Hatfield 
District Plan 2005 and National Planning Policy Framework 2012.’

‘The racking structure, by virtue of its location, scale and form, represents an 
incongruous and harsh addition relative to the semi-rural character and visual 
amenities of the existing area. As such, this development represents a poor

Page 6



standard of design which would detract from the character of the existing area 
and its local landscape character, contrary to Policies D1, D2 and RA10 of the 
Welwyn Hatfield District Plan 2005 and National Planning Policy Framework 
2012.’

4.2 Application number: 6/2017/0028
Proposal: Retention of racking structure 
Decision: Withdrawn 
Withdrawal date: 18 January 2017

4.3 Application number: S6/1997/0415/FP
Proposal: Erection of a new building after demolition of existing building 
Decision: Granted 
Decision date: 04 July 1997

4.4 Application number: S6/1995/0812/FP
Proposal: Single storey extension to office building to provide staff rest room, 
canteen and toilets 
Decision: Granted 
Decision date: 19 December 1995

4.3 Application number: S6/1981/0448/
Proposal: Sawmill and offices (details)
Decision: Granted 
Decision date: 01 October 1981

4.4 Application number: S6/1980/0659/
Proposal: Site for replacement offices and sawmill and new gatehouse 
Decision: Granted 
Decision date: 22 January 1981

4.5 Application number: S6/1980/0359/
Proposal: Retention of portable building 
Decision: Refused 
Decision date: 04 September 1980

4.6 Application number: S6/1979/0635/
Proposal: Incorporation of strip of land into timber yard for landscaping and 
tree planting 
Decision: Granted 
Decision date: 29 November 1979

4.7 Application number: S6/1976/0636/
Proposal: Site for replacement offices and sawmill and new gatehouse 
Decision: Granted 
Decision date: 08 September 1977

Page 7



Enforcement 

4.8 Appeal ref: APP/C1950/C/17/3169719
Breach as alleged: Without planning permission, the erection of a covered 
racking structure (7.2m high, 10.5m depth and 60.6m width) 

Decision: Appeal dismissed and enforcement notice upheld as corrected and 
varied 

Decision date: 15 September 2017 

Requirements of notice: a) Demolish and completely remove the racking 
structure, b) Remove from the land, all materials and debris resulting from the 
demolition of the unauthorised racking structure and restore land to its 
previous condition.  Period for compliance: 6 months 

5 Relevant Planning Policy

5.1 National Planning Policy Framework 2018 (NPPF)

5.2 Welwyn Hatfield District Plan 2005 (Saved Local Plan)

5.3 Draft Local Plan Proposed Submission 2016 (Emerging Local Plan 2016)

5.4 Supplementary Design Guidance 2005 (SDG)

5.5 Supplementary Planning Guidance, Parking Standards 2004 (SPG) 

6 Site Designation 

6.1 The site lies within specified settlement of Brookmans Park as designated 
within the Saved Local Plan.

7 Representations Received 

7.1 The application have been advertised by neighbour notification letters and a 
site notice 

7.2 26 neighbour objections and 1 representation of support have been received 
for this application.  Objections and comments are summarised below:

Objections 
- Negative effect on character and appearance of area 
- Overly large and bulky 
- Harm to Green Belt and no very special circumstances 
- Traffic issues and pressures from heavy good vehicles accessing and 

exiting from the highway.  The development would also increase 
vehicle movements, increased noise and pollution.

- Scale of traffic and speed of vehicles will in the long term have a 
detrimental effect to listed buildings along Coopers Lane

- Neighbour amenity concerns

Page 8



Support 
- No reason for reducing the height of the storage racks.  It is not 

obtrusive or ugly in any way
- By storing good vertically reduces the floor area considerably 

 
8 Parish Council Representations 

8.1 Northaw and Cuffley Parish Council have objected to this application.  This 
objection is stated as follows:

“The Inspector who refused the previous appeal ruled that there is:- Harm to 
the Green Belt from introducing an industrial structure The volume of the 
racking now proposed is a massive 2566.7 cubic metres Northaw is not an 
industrial area Loss of amenity to neighbours No very special circumstances 
Should WHBC approve this application, we would expect industry standard 
conditions to be applied e.g. hours of operating, no parking on the B156, size 
of lorries etc. However we would regret this application being approved as it 
would set a precedent for nearby landowners.”

9 Analysis

9.1 The main planning issues to be considered are:

1. Principal of development in the Green Belt (NPPF; Policies GBSP1 
and GBSP2 of the Saved Local Plan; and Policy SADM34 of the 
Emerging Local Plan)

2. Whether there are any ‘very special circumstances’ to clearly 
outweigh any harm to the Green Belt 

3. Quality of design and impact on the character and appearance of the 
area (NPPF; Policies D1, D2, D8, GBSP2 and SDG of the Saved Local 
Plan; and Policy SP9 and SADM16 of the Emerging Local Plan).

4. Impact on the living conditions of neighbouring occupiers (NPPF; 
Policy D1 and SDG of the Saved Local Plan; and Policy SADM11 of the 
Emerging Local Plan)

5. Other matters 

1. Principal of development in the Green Belt 

9.2 Paragraph 145 of the NPPF states that local planning authorities should 
regard the construction of new buildings as inappropriate in Green Belt, apart 
from a number of limited exceptions.  One of these exceptions, engaged in 
this case, is:

“limited infilling or the partial or complete redevelopment of previously 
developed sites (brownfield land), whether redundant or in continuing use 
(excluding temporary buildings), which would…not have a greater impact on 
the openness of the Green Belt than the existing development.”

Page 9



This policy is broadly consistent with the Green Belt policies contained within 
both Policy GBSP1 of the Saved Local Plan and Policy SADM34 of the 
Emerging Local Plan.

Openness 

9.3 The essential characteristics of Green Belts are their openness and their 
permanence. Whilst there is a visual element to loss of openness in the sense 
that a loss of openness is perceived by the human eye, openness is 
essentially an absence of built development in the Green Belt and that is one 
of the essential characteristics which national policy seeks to protect. It seeks 
to keep land free from built development.

9.4 The racking structure, proposed at a reduced height of 4m and omitting the 
roof, would still be substantial in size and would result in a loss of openness 
and visual permeability of the Green Belt.  Consequently, the proposal would 
represent inappropriate development in the Green Belt contrary to the above 
policies.

2. Quality of design and impact on the character and appearance of the 
area

9.5 The racking structure subject to the extant enforcement notice was covered 
with pitched roofs and measured 7.2m high, 10.5m deep and 60.6m wide.  
The Inspector considered that this structure, by reason of its height, width and 
design, was unduly prominent and visually intrusive.  In this respect, it was 
clearly visible from Coopers Lane as well as from the access road to the south 
of the site, from where there are unrestricted views of the racking structure 
from the entrance of the site.  Whilst sited well back from Coopers Lane, it 
contrasted markedly with the generally open character of the surrounding 
semi-rural area.  It was concluded that the racking structure harmed the 
character and appearance of the area.

9.6 The proposed racking structure would be sited in the exact same position and 
cover the same area as the structure dismissed at appeal.  However, it omits 
the several pitched roofs and would have a reduced height of 4m (a 3.2m 
reduction to the structure dismissed at appeal).  The outcome of which would 
be a structure which would be materially less imposing in the context of its 
surrounding environment.  Whilst the racking structure would remain clearly 
visible from the access road to the south of the site, and to a lesser extent, 
Coopers Lane, planting of appropriate soft landscaping along the southern 
boundary would further mitigate its discernible impact on the landscape.  To 
this end, the proposed racking structure would not appear prominent or 
visually intrusive.  There would be no demonstrable harm to the character and 
appearance of the area, in accordance with Saved Local Plan Policies D1 and 
D2, the Council’s SDG, Emerging Local Plan Policy SP9 and the NPPF.  

3. Impact on the living conditions of neighbouring occupiers

9.7 The Inspector in the enforcement notice appeal deemed that the larger 
racking structure, by virtue of its height and prominence, was visually intrusive 

Page 10



when viewed from some of the nearby residential properties and there was 
harm to outlook from those dwellings.

9.8 The nearest residential properties to the application site which may be 
affected by the proposed development are ‘Sunnyview’ and Castleair’.  These 
properties as situated to the south-west of the application site, on the opposite 
side of the access road to the site off Coopers Lane.

9.9 The development subject to this planning application, has been materially 
reduced in height relative to the structure dismissed at appeal and omits the 
large bulky pitched roofs.  It is considered that such changes together with the 
separation distance between the application site and these properties, result in 
a structure which would not appear unduly dominant nor harm outlook from 
these properties.  It is concluded that the proposed development would not 
harm the living conditions of the occupiers of these dwellings and there would 
be no conflict with Saved Local Plan Policy D1, the Council’s SDG, Emerging 
Local Plan Policy SADM11 or the NPPF.

4. Other matters  

9.10 On the opposite side of Coopers Lane, approximately 17m from the 
application site and 74m from the racking structure, is Holly Frindle Cottage – 
a Grade II Listed property occupied as a single dwelling.  This Listed building 
does not demand a wide setting.  The racking structure is well separated from 
this building.  Therefore, it is considered that the development proposal would 
have no undue impact on the setting of this listed building.

9.11 A large number of representations have been received from local residents, 
the significant majority of which objecting to the altered racking structure at the 
site.  Some of the reasons behind these objections, such as the impact of the 
racking structure on the Green Belt and its effect on the character and 
appearance of the area, have been addressed in this report.  There is, 
however, another recurring theme in these representations: namely, a 
perceived increase in movement of heavy goods vehicles as a result of the 
racking structure, including associated increases in noise and pollution.

9.12 The Inspector for the dismissed enforcement notice appeal considered the 
perceived increase vehicle movement in detail.  Paragraph 32 of this decision 
states:

“The representations from local residents refer to incidents of heavy goods 
vehicles stationary on Coopers Lane and obstructing the highway when 
waiting to gain access to the site. I have no reason to doubt the veracity of 
those observations, but two points arise. Firstly, the appeal site adjoins a 
recycling centre operated by Chas Storer Ltd. I understand that vehicular 
access to the recycling centre is achieved using the same access road from 
Coopers Lane as the appeal. In the absence of a detailed breakdown that 
identifies the origin and/or destination of each of those vehicles, I am unable 
to conclude with any certainty whether the increase in movements by heavy 
goods vehicles can be attributed to the appeal site. Indeed, I note that the 
appellant complains that vehicles heading for the recycling centre block the 

Page 11



access to his own site, which to my mind indicates that not all of the 
movements of heavy goods vehicles observed by local residents originate 
from or are heading to the appeal site.”

9.13 Paragraph 33 of the Inspector’s decision goes on to state:

“The second point is that, as the local residents point out, the need for the 
racking structure appears to derive from the sale of part of the former timber 
yard to Chas Storer Ltd. As indicated above, I have been provided with 
photographic evidence to show that a large proportion of the site before being 
split was used for the external storage of timber. There is no evidence before 
me to suggest that there has been any increase in the amount of timber 
stored on the appeal site when compared to the site before it was split. 
Similarly, there is no empirical evidence before me to show that there has 
been an increase in the number of vehicular movements since the site was 
split and the racking structure erected. The evidence before me does, 
however, point to the racking structure being required to restore storage 
capacity to the level that existed before the site was split in 2016 rather than 
any increase in storage capacity likely to result in additional vehicular 
movements.”

9.14 Northaw Action Group (NAG) have outlined in their objection letter that they 
have commissioned a legally admissible traffic report demonstrating the 
detrimental effects of lorry movements to the Chas Storer and Wood Green 
sites in terms of types of lorry’ visiting the site and times of lorry visits.  It is 
also outlined that an analysis of the Wood Green ‘upward expansion’ was 
undertaken, the outcome of which would result in 50% increase in traffic within 
2-3 years.  This report, however, has not be provided alongside this planning 
application, in order for the Local Planning Authority to undertake a thorough 
assessment of its content and validity relevant to this specific planning 
application.

9.15 There is also no evidence to prove that harmful levels of noise and pollution 
would result from the proposed racking structure.

9.16 Whilst the Local Planning Authority do have sympathy with the concerns 
raised by local residents in relation to increased vehicular movements, 
highway safety, noise and pollution.  However, taking account of the 
comments raised by the Inspector and in the absence of substantiated 
evidence in this planning application.  Therefore, a refusal of planning 
permission on these grounds are not warranted.

5. Whether there are other considerations which clearly outweigh the 
harm to the Green Belt and any other harm thereby justifying the 
development on the basis of very special circumstances

9.17 By virtue of its greater impact on openness, the proposed racking structure 
would represent inappropriate development in the Green Belt, contrary to 
Policy GBSP1 of the Saved Local Plan, Policy SADM34 of the Emerging Local 
Plan and requirements of the NPPF.  Paragraph 143 of the NPPF confirms 

Page 12



that inappropriate development is, by definition, harmful to the Green Belt and 
should not be approved except in very special circumstances.

9.18 Paragraph 144 of the NPPF goes on to state that local planning authorities 
should ensure that substantial weight is given to any harm to the Green Belt.  
‘Very special circumstances’ will not exist unless the potential harm to the 
Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness, and any other harm, is clearly 
outweighed by other considerations

9.19 Very special circumstances have been presented alongside this submission 
and include:

- Two fall-back positions: the continuation of the existing operation and 
the use of the site as a bulk store, and;

- Imposition of planning conditions to enable the Local Planning Authority 
to regain an element of control over the future use of the site as a 
timber yard.

9.20 The applicant contends that, if the use of the site as a timber merchants is to 
continue, then timber would need to be stored externally to the site up to a 
height of 5m, with a gap of 4m between each stack to allow for the safe 
operation of forklifts.  The applicant explains that, given the reduced height of 
the stacks compared to the racking structure, a greater spread of stacks 
across the site would then be necessary.  Figure 7.1.7 of the supporting 
Planning Statement illustrates the likely distribution of stacked timber across 
the site, including in positions close to the frontage with Coopers Lane that are 
currently open or which, at the time of the site visit, were used for the low-level 
storage of smaller items.

9.21 The first fall-back position would result in individual stacks of timber of up to 
5m in height being placed along the entire west boundary of the site, broadly 
equivalent to the width of the existing racking structure.  The individual stacks 
could also be stored to a depth greater than that of the existing racking 
structure and, significantly, could be sited close to the Coopers Lane frontage.  
Paragraph 20 of the Inspectors report states:

“Although the existing racking structure is a substantial structure and 
significantly harms the openness of the Green Belt, in my judgement the 
impact on the openness of the Green Belt resulting from the first fall-back 
position would potentially be at least equal to and possibly greater than that 
arising from the existing racking structure.  I also consider that the effect on 
the character and appearance of the area would be at least equal to that 
arising from the existing racking structure.”

9.22 In the second fall-back position, the site would be used as a bulk store 
ancillary to the applicant’s other site in Wood Green, with little or no access by 
customers.  This scenario would result in timber being stored to heights of up 
to 7m across much of the site, again shown on Drawing No: WGTY1, and 
close to the Coopers Lane frontage.  That height is 3m taller than the racking 
structure proposed under this current application and very close to the height 

Page 13



of the racking structure dismissed at appeal.  Paragraph 21 of the Inspectors 
report states:

“In my judgement, the impact on the openness of the Green Belt and the 
character and appearance of the area resulting from the second fall-back 
position would potentially be greater than that arising from the existing racking 
structure.”

9.23 Notwithstanding the potential harm which the Inspector attributed to the fall-
back positions relative to the larger racking structure previously proposed, it 
was also necessary to consider the likelihood of either of the two fall-back 
positions being implemented.  It was considered that in the absence of 
supporting information, in terms of how staff or customers would select timber 
from an individual stack or how that timber would be removed, the Inspector 
was not convinced that the two fall-back scenarios represent a workable 
solution for a timber yard.  Furthermore, no evidence was submitted to 
demonstrate that the stacking of timber to these heights complies with relevant 
legislation, including that relating to health and safety where the site is visited 
by members of the public.  Consequently, both fall-back positions only 
attracted limited weight in the balancing exercise.

9.24 In response to the above questions and concerns raised by the Inspector, the 
applicant has provided supporting information in the form of a Method 
Statement to explain how the site would operate in these fall-back positions.

9.25 The Addendum Method Statement is specific to the application site and 
demonstrates how timber can be stacked to 5m as a working stack and 7m for 
bulk storage based on a Health and Safety Executive information sheet on 
safe working practices for the safe stacking and storage of logs, sawn timber 
and board materials (Woodworking Information Sheet No 2, Revision 2, June 
2014).  The Method Statement also makes clear that no trade or retail 
customers are allowed access to the timber storage stacks.

9.26 Although neither fall-back position has been witnessed at the site to-date, this 
does not rule out the potential for timber stacking at the site to intensify.  In 
reaching that view, the Local Planning Authority are mindful that approximately 
half of the original site was recently acquired to Chas Storer Ltd, thereby 
substantially reducing the available surface area which was available for 
timber stacking.  

9.27 Having regard to the above, there is a reasonable prospect that either of the 
fall-back positions advanced by the applicant would be implemented.  It is 
considered that the fall-back positions open to the applicant attracts significant 
weight in the planning balance.

9.28 A further justification advanced by the applicant is that there are presently no 
planning conditions that restrict the operation of the site.  This is not contested 
by the Local Planning Authority.

9.29 Planning permission S6/1980/0659/ for ‘the erection of replacement offices, a 
sawmill and a new gatehouse’ imposed conditions restricting the stacking of 

Page 14



timber to be limited to 6m and that the hours of opening on the site shall be 
limited from 8am to 6pm on any weekday, from 8am to 1pm on Saturdays and 
not work on Sundays or Bank Holidays.  However, this planning permission 
was never implemented, such that the conditions carry no weight.

9.30 The applicant has suggested that conditions could be imposed on any 
planning permission granted for the racking system.  The suggested 
conditions include: a restriction on the hours of operation of the site; limiting 
the height timber could be stacked elsewhere on the site, and; additional soft 
landscaping along the most prominent boundaries.  Full details of these 
conditions are listed is paragraph 2.3 of this report.  Consistent with the views 
of the Inspector in paragraph 26 of the Appeal Decision, it is considered that 
regaining an element of control over the future use of the site would a benefit 
arising from the development.

9.31 The suggested restrictions to which the height timber could be stacked 
throughout the site, particularly in the most publically visible locations, have a 
potential benefit in terms of the openness of the Green Belt.  This opinion is 
consistent with the view taken by the Planning Inspector in the enforcement 
notice appeal.  The provision of additional soft landscaping along the eastern 
and southern boundaries will help to screen views of the timber yard and 
soften the existing appearance of the site.  The hours of opening condition 
advanced by the applicant reflects the current openings hours of the site which 
are not unreasonable.  The imposition of the suggested conditions weigh in 
favour of granting planning permission for the racking structure and this 
consideration attracts moderate weight in the balancing exercise.

9.32 In accordance with the NPPF, substantial weight is attached to the harm to the 
Green Belt by reason of the inappropriate nature of the development.  

9.33 Against this, substantial weight is attached to the two fall-back positions 
advanced by the applicant, and moderate weight to the imposition of planning 
conditions to regain an element of control over the future use of the site.  

9.34 Subject to suitably worded conditions where applicable, the development 
would maintain the character and appearance of the area and protect the 
living conditions of neighbouring occupiers.  Also, concerns regarding 
increased vehicular movements are unsubstantiated with evidence.  As such, 
there would be no other harm resulting from the development.

9.35 In weighing the balance, it is considered that the harm by reason of 
inappropriateness is clearly outweighed by other considerations.  The very 
special circumstances necessary to justify the development exist in this case.

Conditions 

9.36 The National Planning Policy Guidance governs the use of conditions in 
planning and the power to impose conditions when granting planning 
permission is very wide.  If used properly, conditions can enhance the quality 
of development and enable many development proposals to proceed where it 
would otherwise have been necessary to refuse planning permission.  The 

Page 15



objectives of planning, however, are best served when that power is exercised 
in such a way that conditions are clearly seen to be fair, reasonable and 
practicable.  Conditions should only be imposed where they are both 
necessary and reasonable, as well as enforceable, precise and relevant both 
to planning and to the development to be permitted. In considering whether a 
particular condition is necessary, both officers and members should ask 
themselves whether planning permission would have to be refused if that 
condition were not to be imposed. If it would not, then the condition needs 
special and precise justification.

10 Conclusion

10.1 The proposed development has been considered in terms of its effect upon 
the Green Belt, character and appearance of the area and living conditions of 
neighbouring occupiers.  Other considerations from neighbours in terms of 
vehicular movements and associated concerns about highway safety, noise 
and pollution have been considered.

10.2 Subject to conditions, the proposed development would accord with Policies 
GBSP1, GBSP2, D1, D2 and D8 of the Saved Local Plan, Policies SP9, 
SADM11, SADM16 and SADM34 of the Emerging Local Plan and the NPPF.

11 Recommendation

12.1 It is recommended that planning permission be granted subject to the 
following conditions:

1. The stacking of timber within 20 metres of the boundary of the site – facing 
Coopers Lane, shall be limited to 2.5 metres in height.  The stacking of timber 
on all other parts of the site shall be limited to 4 metres in height.

REASON: In the interests of Green Belt openness and visual amenity of the 
site and its surrounding context, in accordance with Policies GBSP1 and 
GBSP2 of the Welwyn Hatfield District Plan 2005; Policies SP9 and SADM34 
of the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Draft Local Plan Proposed 
Submission August 2016 and; the National Planning Policy Framework 2018.

2. The hours of opening of the site shall be limited to 7am-5pm Monday to 
Friday, 8am-1pm Saturday and closed Sundays and Bank Holidays.

REASON: To secure the existing hours of opening of the site and ensure that 
operations at the site are not undertaken at unreasonable hours, in the 
interest of protecting the living conditions of neighbouring occupiers, in 
accordance with Policy R19 of the Welwyn Hatfield District Plan 2005, Policy 
SADM18 of the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Draft Local Plan Proposed 
Submission August 2016 and the National Planning Policy Framework 2018.

3. Within 3 months from the date of this decision, a soft landscaping plan for the 
eastern boundary of the site (fronting Coopers Lane) and southern boundary 
of the site (fronting access road) shall be submitted to and agreed by the 
Local Planning Authority.  Details shall include: planting plans, including 

Page 16



specifications of species, sizes, planting centres, number and percentage mix, 
and details of seeding or turfing.

REASON: The landscaping of these parts of the site are required in order to 
protect and enhance the existing visual character of the area and to reduce 
the visual and environmental impacts of the development hereby permitted in 
accordance with Policies GBSP2, D2 and D8 of the Welwyn Hatfield District 
Plan 2005; Policies SP9 and SADM16 of the Welwyn Hatfield Borough 
Council Draft Local Plan Proposed Submission August 2016 and; the National 
Planning Policy Framework 2018.

4. All agreed landscaping comprised in the above details of landscaping shall be 
carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons following the occupation 
of the first building, the completion of the development, or in agreed phases 
whichever is the sooner: and any plants which within a period of 5 years from 
the completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously 
damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with 
others of similar size and species.  All landscape works shall be carried out in 
accordance with the guidance contained in British Standards 8545: 2014.

REASON: To ensure proper implementation of the agreed landscape details 
in the interest of the amenity value of the development in accordance with 
Policies GBSP2, D2 and D8 of the Welwyn Hatfield District Plan 2005; 
Policies SP9 and SADM16 of the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Draft 
Local Plan Proposed Submission August 2016 and; the National Planning 
Policy Framework 2018.

5. The development/works shall not be started and completed other than in 
accordance with the approved plans and details:

 
Plan 
Number
OI1094822

Revision 
Number

Details

Site Location Plan 

Received Date

16 March 2018
201 B Site Plan and Elevations 16 March 2018

REASON: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the 
approved plans and details.

 
1. POSITIVE AND PROACTIVE STATEMENT

The decision has been made taking into account, where practicable and 
appropriate the requirements of paragraphs 38 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework and material planning considerations do not justify a decision 
contrary to the development plan (see Officer’s report which can be viewed on 
the Council's website or inspected at these offices).

Page 17



Informative:

1. This permission does not convey any consent which may be required under 
any legislation other than the Town and Country Planning Acts. Any permission 
required under the Building Regulations or under any other Act, must be 
obtained from the relevant authority or body e.g. Fire Officer, Health and Safety 
Executive, Environment Agency (Water interest etc. Neither does this 
permission negate or override any private covenants which may affect the land.

David Elmore (Development Management)
Date: 20 August 2018
Expiry date: 14 September 2018.

Page 18



Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



             Part I
Executive Member: Councillor S Boulton

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE – 13 SEPTEMBER 2018
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE) 

6/2018/1556/FULL

11 OAKLEA, WELWYN, AL6 0PT

RETROSPECTIVE APPLICATION FOR THE CHANGE OF USE OF AMENITY LAND 
TO RESIDENTIAL LAND INCLUDING THE ERECTION OF A 1.82M BOUNDARY 
FENCE

APPLICANT: Mr Allegri

(Welwyn West)

1 Site Description

1.1 The site is located on the corner of Oaklea and Oaklea Wood adjacent to No.11 
Oaklea.

1.2 The land previously consisted of mixed vegetation including high Lleyandii trees 
which had grown up to the boundary of the private road mostly covering the area 
of verge.  The verge was partially grassed in areas and measures approximately 
2m in depth and 29m in length.

2 The Proposal

2.1 This application is to change the use of land comprising a ‘verge’ to garden land 
and to replace an existing enclosing, fence which was erected without planning 
permission  measuring 2.43m (8ft) high, with a shorter 1.82 (6ft) fence.  The 
fence will be attached to the existing front boundary wall of No.11 Oaklea and 
span the full depth of the plot enclosing the verge/land.

2.2 The fence has been erected to enclose land which has been purchased by 
occupiers of No.11 Oaklea.  

2.3 Vegetation and trees previously occupying the space has been removed.  

3 Reason for Committee Consideration

3.1 This application is presented to the Development Management Committee 
because Councillor Tony Kingsbury has objected to the proposal and called-in 
the application and states: “I would like to call in the application to committee, if 
the officer is minded to approve it, on the basis that the loss of amenity land has 
raised concerns from many residents. The reduced height fence is still out of 
keeping and overbearing when considered with the surrounding properties and 
road. The fence is close to the road and safety issues need to be considered. 

Page 21

Agenda Item 7



There have also been issues raised by neighbours regarding right of way over 
the area”.

4 Relevant Planning History

4.1 Application Number: N6/2002/1403/FP Decision: Granted Decision Date: 11 
November 2002
Proposal: Two storey side extension and extension of existing gable to opposing flank

4.2 Application Number: N6/2003/0291/FP Decision: Granted Decision Date: 06 
October 2003
Proposal: Rear dormer and pitched gable roofs to all dormers and new boundary walls 
and railings

4.3 Application Number: N6/2010/0920/FP Decision: Granted Decision Date: 13 
July 2010
Proposal: Erection of two storey side extension

5 Relevant Planning Policy

5.1 National Planning Policy Framework 2018 (NPPF) 

5.2 Welwyn Hatfield District Plan 2005 (Local Plan)

5.3 Draft Local Plan Proposed Submission 2016 (Emerging Local Plan 2016)

5.4 Supplementary Design Guidance 2005 (SDG)

6 Site Designation 

6.1 The site lies within the town of Welwyn as designated in the Welwyn Hatfield 
District Plan 2005.

7 Representations Received 

7.1 The application was advertised by means of neighbour notification letters. Five 
representations have been received, objecting to the application. These are 
summarised below:

 Concerns that the proposal causes highway safety issues
 The enclosure of the land would take away residents “rights of way”
 The structure is out of keeping

7.2 Councillor Kingsbury – Objection and call-in stated as follows:

“I would like to call in the application to committee, if the officer is minded to 
approve it, on the basis that the loss of amenity land has raised concerns from 
many residents. The reduced height fence is still out of keeping and overbearing 
when considered with the surrounding properties and road. The fence is close to 
the road and safety issues need to be considered. There have also been issues 
raised by neighbours regarding right of way over the area”.

 

Page 22



7.3 Welwyn Parish Council Welwyn Objected with the following: 

“This is a retrospective planning application for the 8 foot fence already in place, 
it is out of keeping with the area and overbearing when considering the 
surrounding properties and road”.

8 Analysis

8.1 The main planning issues to be considered in the determination of this 
application are:

1. Quality of design and impact on the character and appearance of the 
area (NPPF; Policies D1, D2, D8, GBSP2 and SDG of the Local Plan; Policy 
SP9 of the Emerging Local Plan)

2. Impact on the living conditions of neighbouring occupiers and future 
occupiers (NPPF; Policy D1 and SDG of the Local Plan; Policy SADM11 of 
the Emerging Local Plan)

3. Other considerations 

1. Quality of the design and impact on the character and appearance of the 
area 

8.2 District Plan Policies D1 and D2, Emerging Local Plan Policy SP9 and the 
Supplementary Design Guidance (SDG), seek to ensure a high quality of design 
which relates to the character and context of the dwelling and surrounding area. 
These policies are in line with the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
section 7 in that planning should require good design.  

8.3 The change of use of land involves moving the side boundary fence of No.11 
Oaklea to enclose the adjacent ‘verge’ land to form part of the residential 
curtilage of number 11.  The fence that has been erected is currently 2.43m (8ft), 
however the height of the close-boarded fence will be reduced to 1.82m (6ft) 
should planning permission be granted.

8.4 The view from the frontage of the site, along Oaklea is considered to be in- 
keeping with the streetscene and blends in with the existing front boundary wall 
and is of similar height.

8.5 The adjacent land has changes in ground levels from the land that immediately 
surrounds No.11 Oaklea, and as such the fence appears higher when viewed 
from the lower level Oaklea Wood.  The fence has also been erected close to the 
kerb next to the highway which makes the fence more prominent when viewed 
from the adjacent highway, however as now proposed the height will be reduced 
to a standard fence panel height of 1.82m.

8.6 The immediate streetscene opposite to the length of fencing also consists of rear 
boundary fences and therefore a fence would not be an uncommon feature within 
the immediate area.  The reduced  height whilst still 1.82m would enclose rising 
land comprising a garden and so in order to ensure security to the residential 
dwelling a 1.82m fence would not be unusual, it would be a standard rear and 
side boundary fence height.  Its appearance, however is markedly different from 
the vegetation that previously stood on the site.

Page 23



8.7 Despite this, on balance, the proposed fence is not considered to significantly 
harm the character of the area and is acceptable and in accordance with the 
National Planning Policy Framework 2018 when read as a whole, Policies D1 
and D2 of the District Plan 2005, Emerging Local Plan Policy SP9 and 
Supplementary Design Guidance 2005.

2. Impact on living conditions and the residential amenity of adjoining 
neighbours

8.8 With regard to the impact on the amenity of adjoining neighbours, Policy D1 and 
the SDG states that development should not cause loss of light or appear unduly 
dominant from an adjoining property. Policy SADM11 aims to preserve 
neighbouring amenity.  Furthermore, guidance in paragraph 17 of the NPPF is to 
always seek to secure high quality design and good standard of amenity for all 
existing and future occupiers of land and buildings.

8.9 The proposed change of use to the land and proposed fence would mostly affect 
the residential property which is No.9 Oaklea as the boundaries abut.

8.10 However, it is considered that the proposed fence and change of use land would 
not harm any neighbouring amenity in terms of outlook, privacy or loss of 
sunlight.  The adjoining properties have sufficient separation distance being 
detached to prevent any harm from the development.  Therefore the proposal is 
considered acceptable. 

Other considerations 

8.11 Landscaping

8.12 The piece of land adjacent to No.11 Oaklea consisted of trees and mixed species 
vegetation.  These were all removed to enclose the land, however the trees were 
not protected by any tree preservation order or within a Conservation Area and 
therefore permission was not required to carry out the removal.

8.13 Highways

8.14 Hertfordshire Highways has confirmed that the fence is not on highway land and 
does not impact on the visibility between vehicles at this junction, with visibility 
measured 2.4m back from the junction unrestricted. 

8.15 Oaklea at the junction is approximately 7m wide. Whilst the fence is close to the 
back edge of kerb and will represent a potential obstruction to wing mirrors, 
necessitating vehicles to be marginally further from the kerb, it shall not prejudice 
the ability for two vehicles to pass. It is accepted that Oaklea reduces to 
approximately 3.7m width, insufficient for two vehicles to pass, however the 
fence does not further exacerbate this restriction. Furthermore, sufficient width 
for access for emergency vehicles remains.

8.16 Oaklea and Oaklea Wood feature no footways – with pedestrians / vehicles 
occupying the same space and accepting that the route is reasonably low speed 
and low levels of traffic use, operates without undue difficulty. The fence does not 
unduly prejudice pedestrian movement, noting that the former verge was 
overgrown and not available for use by pedestrians.

8.17 In the view of the Highway Authority the fence structure does not prejudice 
pedestrian or highway safety and no objection is presented.

Page 24



8.18 Conclusion

8.19 The proposed development would not be detrimental to the character and 
context of the area and would maintain the amenity of the occupiers of adjoining 
dwellings. Furthermore, highway safety is maintained.  Accordingly, the proposal 
complies with Policy D1, D2 and GBSP2 of the Welwyn Hatfield District Plan 
2005, Policies SP1, SP9, SADM11 of Emerging Local Plan 2016, Supplementary 
Design Guidance Statement of Council Policy 2005 and relevant parts of the 
National Planning Policy Framework 2012.

Recommendation  

11.1 It is recommended that planning permission be approved subject to the following 
condition:

1. The development/works shall be started and completed in accordance with the 
approved plans and details within 2 months of the decision date.

Plan 
Number

Revision 
Number

Details Received Date

Block Plan Block Plan 11 June 2018
Location Plan Location Plan 11 June 2018
1 Front Elevation Existing Plan 11 June 2018
2 Proposed Elevation Plan 11 June 2018

 
REASON: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the 
approved plans and details.

SUMMARY OF REASONS FOR THE GRANT OF PERMISSION:

The decision has been made taking into account, where practicable and 
appropriate the requirements of paragraphs 186-187 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework and material planning considerations do not justify a decision 
contrary to the development plan (see Officer’s report which can be inspected at 
these offices). 

Informatives:

1. This permission does not convey any consent which may be required under any 
legislation other than the Town and Country Planning Acts. Any permission 
required under the Building Regulations or under any other Act, must be obtained 
from the relevant authority or body e.g. Fire Officer, Health and Safety Executive, 
Environment Agency (Water interest etc. Neither does this permission negate or 
override any private covenants which may affect the land.

2. Any damage to the grass verges caused by the development/works hereby 
approved is the responsibility of the applicant and must be re-instated to their 
original condition, within one month of the completion of the development/works. 
If damage to the verges are not repaired then the Council and/or Highway 
Authority will take appropriate enforcement action to remedy any harm caused.

Kerrie Charles (Development Management)

Page 25



APPENDIX 1

Page 26



Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Part I
Executive Member: Councillor S.Boulton

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE – 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE
 

6/2018/1708/TPO

57 ATTIMORE ROAD, WELWYN GARDEN CITY AL8 6LG

FELL 1X CONIFER TREE (T1)- CONSERVATION AREA

APPLICANT: Mrs F Thomson

AGENT: Robinson Tree Services LTD

Handside

1 Site Description

1.1 The site in question is a residential property located along Attimore Road, 
Welwyn Garden City. The tree is situated within the front garden adjacent to 
the boundary with 59 Attimore Road. 

2 The Proposal

2.1 The applicant is proposing to fell the conifer.  

3 Reason for Committee Consideration

3.1 This application is presented to the Development Management Committee 
because the applicant is a Councillor at  Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

4 Relevant Planning History

4.1 N/a

5 Relevant Planning Policy

5.1 Conservation Area; Section 211 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

6 Site Designation 

6.1 The site lies within Welwyn Garden City Conservation Area as designated in 
the Welwyn Hatfield District Plan 2005.

7 Representations Received 

7.1 No representations have been received.

Page 29

Agenda Item 8



8 Consultations Received 

8.1 No consultation responses have been received.

9 Town / Parish Council Representations

9.1 N/A

10 Analysis

10.1 The main planning issues to be considered in the determination of this 
application are:

1. Whether or not the proposed works are considered appropriate within 
the Conservation Area.
 

10.2 An assessment is required of the amenity value of the tree and whether it 
helps to preserve the character or appearance of the Conservation Area.

10.3 The assessment considers the condition of the trees, their retention span, 
relative public visibility and other factors such as, but not limited to, whether 
they are part of a group, have historical importance and have good form.

10.4 The tree in question is mature conifer in excess of 10 metres tall. The tree is 
seen from the road. Although the tree does have some amenity value it is 
causing structural damage to the boundary wall and is likely to become a 
significant issue if left in situ. In light of the above it is considered that the tree 
has outgrown its location and does not warrant the protection of a Tree 
Preservation Order.

11 Conclusion

11.1 Having regard to the damage being caused to the boundary wall, it is 
considered that the tree is not appropriate for its location and does not justify 
the protection of a Tree Preservation Order (TPO).

12 Recommendation

12.1 It is recommended that no objection be raised to the proposed works.

Oliver Waring, (Tree Officer)
Date: 31 August 2018

Page 30



Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



Part I
Executive Member: Councillor S. Boulton

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE – 13 SEPTEMBER 2018
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE)

Appeal Decisions 03/08/2018 to 30/08/2018

6/2017/2957/HOUSE

DCLG No: APP/C1950/D/18/3202429
Appeal By: Mr & Mrs M Guvener

Site: Wildewood Kentish Lane Brookmans Park Hatfield AL9 6JG
Proposal: Erection of ground floor extension & construction of a basement 

following evacuation and demolition of existing pool area and removal 
of external paving and terraced areas

Decision: Appeal Dismissed

Decision Date: 08/08/2018
Delegated or 
DMC Decision:

Delegated

Summary: The main issues in the appeal are whether the proposal would be 
inappropriate development in the Green Belt, the effect on openness 
and whether any harm by reason of inappropriateness, and any other 
harm, would be clearly outweighed by other considerations and if this 
would amount to very special circumstances (vsc). The Inspector noted 
that, in this case, the original building was that constructed subsequent 
to planning permission granted in 1998, which involved the demolition 
of existing buildings on the site and their replacement with a new 
dwelling. It was noted that, since planning permission was granted, 
there have been a variety of extensions and alterations to the property. 
The Inspector noted that there was general agreement that the 
increase in floorspace since the original house was built, that would 
result from the appeal proposal would be in the region of 65%. The 
Inspector considered this to represent a disproportionate addition, 
particularly since it would appear that the cumulative increase in 
footprint could be around 100% and there would be a significant 
increase in bulk and volume. The proposal was therefore considered to 
be inappropriate development that is harmful to the Green Belt. The 
Inspector also found that the proposal would harm the openness of the 
Green Belt by virtue of the additional bulk and scale, and by virtue of 
its position, design and width, it would be harmful to the character and 
appearance of the existing dwelling. The Inspector found that there 
were no very special circumstances that would outweigh the identified 
harm in this case. The appeal was dismissed.

Page 33

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Part I
Main author: Chris Carter
Executive Member: Councillor 

S.Boulton

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, 
PLANNING AND GOVERNANCE)

PLANNING UPDATE – FUTURE PLANNING APPLICATIONS

1          Introduction

1.1      This report is for the Development Management Committee to provide a 
summary of applications that might be presented to Committee over the 
coming months.  If the call-in or application is withdrawn, the item will not 
be presented.

1.2      The applications should not be debated as part of this agenda, however 
any Councillor wishing to raise specific points about the proposal – such as 
a need for planning obligations or issue(s) that might not readily be 
apparent from the proposal or any other matter, may do so and the case 
officer will consider, where they are planning considerations, these matters 
raised as part of the future Committee report.

1.3      Appendix 1 comprises all applications that have been called-in or objected 
to by Town or Parish Councils.  Appendix 2 comprises those that are a 
departure from the Local Plan, Officers consider should be determined by 
Development Management Committee, the applicant is the Borough 
Council or it has an interest in the land and an objection has been 
received.

2          Recommendation

2.1      That members note this report.

Name of author                Chris Carter
Title                                Development Management Service Manager

 

Page 35

Agenda Item 10



Appendix 1 - Applications called-in or objected to
ward description

6/2016/0270/VAR
Address Four Oaks 1-4 Great North Road Welwyn AL6 0PL
Proposal Variation of conditions 1 (occupants) and 2 (number of 

caravans) of Planning Permission N6/2010/0211/S73B to 
increase the number of caravans from 10 to 20 of which no 
more than 5 shall be static caravans or mobile homes.

Applicant Mr J Connors
Ward Welwyn West
Agent Mr M Green

Call-
In/Objection 
from

Councillor Julie Cragg, Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

Please can we call this in due to the fact that this raises a lot of 
issues of concern for the residents.
There is uneasiness about the fact that the number of caravans 
fluctuates wildly and that they residents do not appear to adhere 
to the planing that they do have.
The restrictions regarding children is there as this was not 
intended to be a permanent site but only to give stability to the 
children to enable them to attend school.
Are they planning to use caravans as an office sutie and run 
business's from there? [sic]

Call-
In/Objection 
from

Caroline Williams, Welwyn Parish Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

15/03/2016 21:43 - Welwyn Parish Council at its Planning & 
Licensing Committee of the 15 March 2016 agreed to submit 
Major Objection.  We are unclear why the existing conditions 
have not been enforced.  We understand that the site was 
permitted as a temporary location linked to the schooling of the 
children which have now grown up and not as a permanent site.  
We are concerned that the number of caravans has continued to 
increase overtime both with, and without, permission and 
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council have previously stated that 10 
is the maximum that can be accommodated.  The existing 
conditions include that the land should be restored in 
accordance with the scheme previously submitted and approved 
by the planning authority as the residents may have already 
changed.

Case Officer Mrs June Pagdin

Page 36



6/2016/1493/VAR
Address Thunderbridge Yard Bulls Lane Hatfield AL9 7BB
Proposal Variation of condition 1 to extend the temporary permission; 

condition 3 to permit eight caravans of which no more than five 
would be static caravans; condition 4 to vary the approved 
drawings; and condition 5 to vary the site development scheme; 
of planning permission S6/2011/0116/FP

Applicant Mr J Robb
Ward Welham Green & Hatfield South
Agent Mrs A Heine

Call-
In/Objection 
from

Councillor Paul Zukowskyj, Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

I would like to formally 'call in ' this applicaiton as it meets at 
least two of the key criteria for a call in, namely 1. The 
application is of an unusually sensitive nature as the current use 
of the site has led to significant adverse impact on neighbours 
amenity and that development beyond that permitted had 
occurred at the site. 2. The wider ramifications are the potential 
impact of permitting this development may have on setting 
precedent for permitting neighbouring sites in the forthcoming 
local plan examination in public. There is also the precedent that 
would be set of permitting such developments, even for a limited 
period, in flood zones.

Call-
In/Objection 
from

Sue Chudleigh, North Mymms Parish Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

NMPC OBJECT as this is clearly a new application. The name 
of the applicants is not the name to whom the extant  
Permission was originally given.

The Government Planning Policy for traveller sites Policy E, in 
its introduction, states that making and decision taking should 
protect the Green Belt from inappropriate development - Item 4d 
and Item 16 state that inappropriate development is harmful to 
the Green Belt except in exceptional circumstances. None have 
been indicated. 

Item 4f - further states the local planning authority should aim to 
reduce the number of unauthorised developments and 
encampments.  This site has consistently exceeded the 
numbers stated in the original Permission and it is too small a 
site to be abused in this way.

Item 4k - states the local planning authority have to have due 
regard to the protection of local amenities and local 
environment.

Page 37



There  have also been sanitary issues arising from the over-use 
of the site.
One or more travelling caravans have also been let to itinerant 
workers in contravention to the terms of the licence.  This has 
caused considerable problems to the neighbourhood.

Item 13 of the Planning Policy for traveller sites states the local 
planning authority should ensure that their policies:

a)  promote peaceful and integrated co-existence between the 
site and the local community 

f)  avoid placing undue pressure on local infrastructure and 
services 

g)  do not locate sites in areas at high risk of flooding, including 
functional floodplains, given the particular vulnerability of 
caravans

Policy E, Item 24 addresses local provision and it is the case 
that WHBC do not have a firm policy on Gypsy and Traveller 
sites in the Borough but there are existing sites in Welham 
Green – including a long term Showmans site which causes no 
trouble – however the Foxes Lane site also is also over used as 
the numbers of caravans exceeds the permitted numbers.
Item 27 states that if a local planning authority cannot 
demonstrate an up to date 5 year supply of  deliverable sites 
this should be a material consideration and in this case the 
existing sites result in  over supply in Welham Green therefore 
any expansion is unwarranted.

Item 25 states that the local planning authority should very 
strictly limit traveller site development  in the Green Belt and 
further ….”sites in rural areas do not dominate the nearest 
settled  community.” Expansion of this site would cause stress 
on services and neighbours.

Item 16 Inappropriate development is harmful to the Green Belt 
and should not be approved, except in very special 
circumstances. Traveller sites (temporary or permanent) in the 
Green Belt are inappropriate development.  Subject to the best 
interests of the child, personal circumstances and unmet need 
are unlikely to clearly outweigh harm to the Green Belt and any 
other harm so as to establish very special circumstances, none 
of which have been indicated in this case.

Item 24(a) The Local Planning Authority has to take into account 
the existing level of local provision and Welham Green currently 
has provision.  Indeed, even this is exceeded unlawfully – see 
report from Dennis Pennyfather, Licensing Technical Officer, 

Page 38



dated 24 August 2016.

Item 25 This further states the Local Planning Authority should 
very strictly limit …. sites in rural areas should not dominate the 
nearest settled community.  Of late the activities at 
Thunderbridge Yard have caused extreme concern and 
disturbance to the neighbourhood.  Police and other authorities 
are aware of this, which seems to arise from the subletting of 
the excessive on-site accommodation to persons other than 
gypsies or travellers.

Footnote 9 States there is no presumption that a temporary 
grant of Planning Permission should be granted permanently, 
therefore North Mymms Parish Council consider, taking into 
account comments by Licensing Technical Officer that the site is 
not big enough, there are fire safety issues and this is a known 
flood plain with previous flooding issues, caravans on this Green 
Belt site are inappropriate development.

Case Officer Mrs June Pagdin

6/2017/0225/FULL
Address Welwyn Rugby Football Club Hobbs Way Welwyn Garden City 

AL8 6HX
Proposal Retention of 4x 15 metre high floodlight columns and lamps 

measuring a further 0.5 metres
Applicant Mr M Elliott
Ward Handside
Agent Mr M Elliott

Call-
In/Objection 
from

Councillor Helen Bromley, Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

I would  like to call this in as the new floodlights are significantly 
higher and brighter than those which they replaced, by some 7 
meters,  and they are also in different positions to the original 
lights.
This has caused significant harm to the residents and the 
general amenity of the area.
The original application did not mention the floodlights being in 
different positions.
This is impacting on the conservation and EMS area.
There is substantial visual intrusion day and night.
At night, the light spill is far worse than previously, despite the 
rugby club saying it would be less. This is not the case.
The club also seems to be contravening the permission given as 
to when they may be used.

Case Officer Mr Tom Gabriel

Page 39



6/2017/0513/FULL
Address 5 West View Hatfield AL10 0PJ
Proposal Change of use from sui-generis (Large HMO for up to 8 people) 

to a large HMO for up to 7 people and 6 self-contained units for 
up to 12 people and erection of laundry area and awning over 
patio

Applicant Ms D Law
Ward Hatfield Cent.
Agent Ms D Law

Call-
In/Objection 
from

Carrie Lloyd, Hatfield Town Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

The Committee objected to this application due to the fact the 
Hatfield Article 4 Direction desperately needs reviewing and this 
has been recognised by the LPA.  Until such time that this has 
been carried out and bearing in mind that the overall 
concentration of HMOs in Hatfield Town Council's area needs to 
be reduced, no further HMOs should be permitted within the 
boundaries of Hatfield Town Council's area hence forth.  This 
particular application lacks sufficient communal space and we 
suggest fails to meet the legal requirements for HMO’s.

Case Officer Mr Mark Peacock

6/2017/0606/MAJ
Address 1-9 Town Centre Hatfield AL10 0JZ
Proposal Erection of 2 buildings to provide 1,194m2 (GEA) commercial 

floor space (A1 & A3), 70 flats (15 x 1 bedroom, 7 x 2 bedroom, 
three person and 48 x 2 bedroom, four person) with associated 
car/bicycle parking, plant and refuse storage and including the 
improvement of public realm, following the demolition of existing 
buildings.

Applicant Mr P Brimley
Ward Hatfield Cent.
Agent Mr P Wellings-Longmore

Call-
In/Objection 
from

Carrie Lloyd, Hatfield Town Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

Object: The Town Council is concerned at the impact of parking 
from new residential units on the retail parking spaces available.  
The Council has repeatedly asked that design of new structures 
in the Town is sympathetic to existing Hatfield designs but again 
we see another architect imposing their design on our Town 
making it an uncoordinated mismatch of urban design from 

Page 40



different decades with no empathy to the historic nature of the 
Town.  Members are concerned at the impact of the level 7 
building on the Grade 1 listed building of Hatfield House.  
Members consider that a community facility needs to be 
included within the design.

Case Officer Mr Mark Peacock

6/2017/1575/HOUSE
Address 6 Errington Close Hatfield AL10 9AU
Proposal Conversion of garage to habitable room with installation of 

window to rear elevation
Applicant Helene
Ward Hatfield Villages
Agent Mr A Feasey

Call-
In/Objection 
from

Carrie Lloyd, Hatfield Town Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

14/08/2017 14:49 - Members object to the loss of a parking 
space in this part of Hatfield where parking is at a premium.

Further the Hatfield Article 4 Direction desperately needs 
reviewing and this has been recognised by the LPA.  Until such 
time that this has been carried out and bearing in mind that the 
overall concentration of HMOs in Hatfield Town Council's area 
needs to be reduced, no further HMOs should be permitted 
within the boundaries of Hatfield Town Council's area hence 
forth, permitting this garage to be converted will further 
exacerbate the increase in student/HMO accommodation in 
Hatfield. 

Case Officer Mr David Elmore

6/2018/1267/VAR
Address 8-18 (inclusive) Stanborough Close Welwyn Garden City AL8 

6XB
Proposal Variation of condition 10 (tenancy restriction) on planning 

permission N6/1994/0338/FP, dated 29/09/1994
Applicant Ms T Sinclair
Ward Handside
Agent Mr A Woolcott

Call-
In/Objection 
from

Councillor Helen Bromley, Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

Page 41



Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

I understand that an application for a variation to several of the 
bungalows has now been submitted.
I have called in previous applications in this Close and would 
like to call in this latest one too.

This would be a fundamental change to the use of these 
dwellings which needs to be considered by the DMC, in order 
that all the implications of any decision, may be fully discussed 
and understood by all.
Kind Regards 
Helen

Case Officer Ms Louise Sahlke

6/2018/1354/OUTLINE
Address Land South of Cromer Hyde Welwyn Garden City
Proposal Outline permission for the change of use of land to airfield with 

runway and support facilities including a clubhouse, hangar and 
car park with all matters except access and layout reserved

Applicant Mr C Fitch
Ward Hatfield Villages
Agent Mr A Bardett

Call-
In/Objection 
from

Councillor Duncan Bell, Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

As one of the ward councillors for Hatfield Villages, I would like 
to conditionally call-in the above application.

This call-in is conditional, in that I would only request it's 
consideration by the Development Management Committee in 
the event that Planning Department recommend approval of the 
application.

My grounds for calling this application in are:

  *   The flying training circuit indicated within the Feasibility 
Study raises potential environmental (noise) concerns impacting 
many properties in Hatfield Garden Village and Salisbury 
Village, as well as properties within the proposed Local Plan 
sites of HAT1 and Symondshyde Village.  This potential 
environmental impact goes well beyond the addresses 
contacted as immediate neighbours.

  *   The Feasibility Study appears to envisage that construction 
of the airfield could be at least partly funded by S106 monies 
generated from the Panshanger site housing development.  In 

Page 42



reality, S106 or CIL commitments generated from Local Plan 
developments will be finite, and there will be many competing 
claims upon their deployment.  They will need to be deployed 
where the infrastructure needs are greatest, as assessed by the 
public authorities involved.  The idea that these essentially 
public resources could be pre-empted for use on a private 
proposal for a new airfield seems questionable at best.

Given the above, I believe that this application is of sufficient 
interest to merit consideration by Development Management 
Committee if the Planning Officer recommends approval.

I have copied the three town councillors for the ward, as Hatfield 
Town Council is one of the consultees.

I will almost certainly submit a more detailed representation in a 
few days time.

Thanks for accepting this call-in.
Kind Regards,
Duncan Bell.

Call-
In/Objection 
from

Carrie Lloyd, Hatfield Town Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

22/06/2018 15:47 - The application is in the Green Belt and no 
special circumstances have been shown to divert from Green 
Belt Policy.  Members are concerned at the effect of noise and 
air pollution on the quality of life on residents of Salisbury Village 
and the Hatfield Garden Village.  HAT1 & HAT2 (if built) will be 
very close to this application site causing further distress to 
residential development.  50 cars will see a great increase in 
vehicular movements in this area.

Case Officer Mr Mark Peacock

6/2018/1635/OUTLINE
Address Historic De Havilland Grass Runway

Ellenbrook fields Hatfield Buisness park
Hatfield Herts

Proposal Outline permission for the change of use of land to airfield with 
runway and support facilities including a clubhouse, hangar and 
car park with all matters except layout reserved

Applicant Mr C Fitch
Ward Hatfield Villages
Agent Mr C Fitch

Page 43



Call-
In/Objection 
from

Councillor Duncan Bell, Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

i would like to conditionally call in the above planning 
application, which appears to be for an airfield within Ellenbrook 
Fields.

This will, as for 6/2018/1354, be a conditional call-in, in that it 
will only need to come to DMC if Planning Department 
recommend approval.

My ground for calling this in are:

• There is a considerable potential for noise nuisance over a 
wide area of Ellenbrook, Salisbury Village, and Hatfield Garden 
Village.
• Just as for application 6/2018/1354, the applicant seems to 
envisage that S106 monies can be used to help finance the 
project.  S106 monies will be a scarce resource in the context of 
the WHBC Local Plan.  They are essentially public resources 
infrastructure needs associated with Local Plan development.  
This should not include private flying facilities.
• There is no airfield at Panshanger to "replace".
• My understanding is that there is an entirely separate S106 
commitment associated with a 2017 mineral extraction 
application to restore Ellenbrook Fields as a country park.  It is 
unclear how this application would fit with this prior commitment. 

Case Officer Mr Mark Peacock

6/2018/1775/VAR
Address 97 Handside Lane Welwyn Garden City AL8 6SP
Proposal Variation of condition 3 (details windows) on planning 

permission 6/2015/2470/HOUSE
Applicant Mrs A Mawer
Ward Handside
Agent Mrs A Mawer

Call-
In/Objection 
from

Councillor Malcolm Cowan, Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

I would like to call in the new application unless officers decide 
to refuse it. My reasons are that it raises issues not covered in 
the description, and it seeks changes that would probably have 
led to a refusal if they had been properly articulated in the 
original application.
 

Page 44



Regards, Malcolm.

Case Officer Mr Tom Gabriel

6/2018/1883/FULL
Address 14-16 Bishops Rise Hatfield AL10 9HB
Proposal Erection of a part single, part two storey rear extension to both 

properties and alterations to openings to facilitate conversion of 
existing houses to form 3 x 2-bedroom and 4 x 1-bedroom flats 
with associated car parking and cycle stores following the partial 
demolition of existing dwelling

Applicant Danewell Limited
Ward Hatfield South West
Agent Mr D Goodman

Call-
In/Objection 
from

Councillor James Broach, Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

15/08/2018 14:52 - Good afternoon, I wish to call this application 
in on the following grounds (though I am happy for this to be 
decided under delegated powers should officers recommend 
refusal).

• The proposed extensions to the two properties seem 
enormous and in my view constitute overdevelopment. I feel that 
they pose a risk to the amenity of neighbouring properties, due 
to the risk of loss of light, and the impression of overlooking to 
properties on Bishops Rise and also Chantry Lane. This could 
be especially exacerbated by the two storey extensions

• Looking at the car parking, I have concerns about a couple of 
the parking spaces. Car Space Flat 2 to No. 16 looks as though 
it would destroy part of the grass verge – is this permitted?

• Looking at Car Space 2 to No. 14, this is sited in very close 
proximity to two of the bedrooms, and especially close to the 
window of Bed 2. I feel that this poses a risk to the amenity of 
the future occupiers of these rooms due to the risk of a noise 
disturbance. 

• I also note by this same parking space that there appears to 
be a door/gate that leads to the cycle/bin store. If this is a gate, 
presumably attached to a fence, then it is not clear how these 
stores can be safely accessed if the parking space is occupied, 
as it would certainly be tricky to move a full bin around a parked 

Page 45



car. Having this space may also delay emergency service 
access to the bin store and garden should the need arise. 

• I feel the location of the bike store to No. 16 represents a poor 
quality of design due to the location chosen right at the far end 
of the garden. 

• Looking at the size of the rooms, Bed 2 on the left and right 
hand sides of the ground floor of No 14 look absolutely tiny, 
especially as the bathroom cuts in to a rather large chunk of 
these rooms. I would also question in these flats whether such a 
small bathroom between potentially 4 occupants represents a 
good quality of design and amenity space?

• I note that the communal gardens are in close proximity to the 
ground floor flats, and would argue that this could pose a risk for 
residents of these ground floor flats to enjoy their amenity 
space. I note that one of the communal gardens is running along 
the side of the boundary with no. 12. I feel that this therefore 
poses a risk to their amenity due to the potential for increased 
noise when compared to the original garden at no.14, as the 
sounds from the garden will be closer to their property

• I note that the applicant has failed to provide dimensions for 
the cycle/bin stores. Do these meet our specified requirements?

This application is an absolutely textbook example of 
inappropriate development to two family houses. I therefore 
urge that it be refused. 

Case Officer Mr David Elmore

Page 46



Appendix 2 - All other applications not comprising call-ins or objections

ward description
6/2017/0606/MAJ

Address 1-9 Town Centre Hatfield AL10 0JZ
Proposal Erection of 2 buildings to provide 1,194m2 (GEA) commercial floor space (A1 

& A3), 70 flats (15 x 1 bedroom, 7 x 2 bedroom, three person and 48 x 2 
bedroom, four person) with associated car/bicycle parking, plant and refuse 
storage and including the improvement of public realm, following the 
demolition of existing buildings.

Applicant Mr P Brimley
Ward Hatfield Cent.
Agent Mr P Wellings-Longmore

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

The applicant is Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council and the proposal is major 
development which should be considered by the Committee.

Case Officer Mr Mark Peacock

S6/2015/1342/PP
Address Land to the north east of King George V Playing Fields, Northaw Road East, 

Cuffley, Hertfordshire, EN6 4RD
Proposal Outline planning application for residential development of up to 121 

dwellings, associated infrastructure and a change of use from agricultural 
land to an extension of the King George V playing field.  All matters reserved 
except for new vehicular access to serve the site, the provision of surface 
water discharge points and the levels of development platforms

Applicant Lands Improvement Holdings Landmatch
Ward Northaw and Cuffley
Agent Mr M Smith

Reason for 
Committee 
Decision

The application is of a scale, sensitive nature or is controversial and officer’s 
consider that in accordance with the Council’s constitution, it should be 
determined by the Development Management Committee.   Additionally, the 
application is a departure from the provisions of the appropriate development 
plan, other policy guidance or supplementary planning guidance.

Case Officer Mr Mark Peacock

Page 47



Page 48



Document is Restricted

Page 49

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 WOOD GREEN TIMBER COMPANY, COOPERS LANE, NORTHAW, POTTERS BAR, EN6 4NE- 6/2018/0719/FULL - RETENTION OF EXISTING RACKING STRUCTURE WITH A REDUCED HEIGHT OF 4M AND OMITTING THE ROOFS
	7 11 OAKLEA, WELWYN, AL6 0PT - 6/2018/1556/FULL - RETROSPECTIVE APPLICATION FOR THE CHANGE OF USE OF AMENITY LAND TO RESIDENTIAL LAND INCLUDING THE ERECTION OF A 1.82M BOUNDARY FENCE
	8 57 ATTIMORE ROAD, WELWYN GARDEN CITY AL8 6LG - 6/2018/1708/TPO - FELL 1X CONIFER TREE (T1) - CONSERVATION AREA
	9 APPEAL DECISIONS
	10 PLANNING UPDATE - FUTURE PLANNING APPLICATIONS
	10 - Appendix 2 Future Applications Cttee Report No Call-In

	13 ENFORCEMENT CASES MONITORING REPORT

